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under some degree of surveillance. 1t would seem to me
strange that the FBI did not transmit this informution to

the Secret Service.

Mr. Rowley. Well, as 1 said earlier ---

Mr. Rankin., Mr. Chairman, may I say somethiig off the
record a8 moment?

The Chairman., Off the record,

(Discussion off the record.O

The Chairman, Back on the record.

Rep. Boggs. My question was 1naccurate -~ 1 am sorry.

Mr. Rowley. The FBI, Mr. Congressman, are c¢mcerned
with internal security. And 1 think their approa:h was internal
security as it related to this individual, whethe: or not he
was a potential recruit for espionage, intelligen:e, or something
like that.

Their concern was talking to him in this veia, in the
course of which there was no indication that he tore any
malice towards anyone, and particularly to the President
of the United States, If someone said that Henry Smith
didn't like the President, and we got the file, we would
get to the point where you have three million nases in ;he

file, How effective are you going to be then?

Rep. Boggs. Well, that is right,
Mr. Rowley. And then you get in the area of civil rights

and all, if you start going into individuals ---
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Rep., Boggs. And if I remember correctly, there has never
been -- we have had no testimony from anyone that Oswald ever’
threatened the President of the United States, 13 that correct?
Mr. Rankin, That 18 correct,
Rep. Boggs. That was the only question 1 hsli.
Mr. Dulles. Along that line, I just raise tie question as

to whether maybe too much emphasis i8 not put on the threat
angle, because a clever fellow, if he 18 going tc assassinate the

President, the last thing he is going to do 1is gc¢ around and talk

about it and threaten it,

Mr. Rowley. That is right. Well, this has >een 80 with

loners, too.

As you say, you read the assassinations., Scne of them

just kept to themselves, and traveled, and the next thing you
know they confronted their victim. Sometimes they were

successful, other times they were not.

Mr. Dulles., 1 recognize the difficulty of working out
adequate criteria. But I just think you ought tc do some

more seeking, and there is more work to be done ca that,

Mr. Rowley, Yes, sir.

May I ask this question: It basn't been clear

Sen. Cooper,

tome, Is it correct that now a defector does ccne within the

gcope of your service!?
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Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir, we are furnished the iames of the.
defectors by the FBI and they investigate these p:0ple. And
then in their report, if it shows that the indiviiual is -- has
emotional instability or proﬁénsity for violence, we pick it
up from there.

But all the reports on the known defectors 11 this

country are submitted to us, and then we evaluate from the
case history of the report whether or not he woull be a risk for
us subject to investigation.
Sen, Cooper. 1 understood that was the proc:dure before.
But my question is8 now, 18 the defector per se clissed as
one of those against whom you would take protecti/e measures?
Mr. Rowley. No, no, sir. Not unless we had ~--
Sen, Cooper, Since the assassination?
Mr, Rowley. Not unless we had these three citegories
of factors we just enunciated.
Sen, Cooper., 1 would suggest -- first, I unlerstand there
are not many defectors who have returned to the Uiited States.
Secondly, it seems to me a man who has defec:ed from the
United States to go to Russia or a Communist coun:ry indicates
that he has pretty strong convictions against the United States,
or else there is something questionable about his mental

processes,

1 would think that fact alone would make it .mportant to
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watch his activities when he came back,

Mr. Rowley. 1t would. And I think the FBI )sroperly

conducts the investigations, from the standpoint )>f internal

security, and furnishes us a;report. And then if there 1is
something in the report that indicates he could b: a risk to the
President or the Vice President, we could take it from there.
Rep. Boggs. Mr. Rankin, I have to go to a m:eting in two
or three minutes., There i8 just one question I w)ruld like to
ask before leaving.
Is it not a fact that probably the greatest leterrent

that you have is the very fact that the public kn ws that there

is a Secret Service.

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir,

Rep. Boggs. That you do guard the life of tie President.

And that the chances 0of an assassin escaping with his own

life are pretty remote. So this psychological weipon 18 one

of the things you rely on?
Mr. Rowley. That is correct.

Rep. Boggs. And you must necessarily keep a degree of

secrecy about the methods you employ.

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir. Otherwise they could develop

countermethods to thwart anything we might set up,

Rep. Boggs. Exactly,

Thank you very much,
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Mr. Rankin, Chief Rowley, do you in the Sec ret Service

obtain the benefit of cooperation with other gove -nmental agencles

in the protection of the President?

Mr. Rowley. We receive 'c00peratlon from eve -y agency.
If I may name a few -- we were scheduled to visit Puerto Rico
in 1948 or 1947 -- 1 am not quite certain -- with President
Truman, who was then vacationing at Key West. We had no
office in Puerto Rico at the time. We did not knw the

situation other than that it could be sticky becaise of the

Nationalist Party of Puerto Rico.

(At this point, Representative Boggs withdrei; from the
hearing room,) .

Mr. Rowley. Our advance man called me and a tked me if
I would not talk to Mr. Hoover to see whether or 0t we could
have the assistance of some of their agents who w:re down there
in an office established there. And I communicati:d then with
the Assistant Director, who said, "I will get bac: to you" and
get the approval. That was an example of the beg .nning of the
cooperation, when 1 was at the White House, with :he FBI.

Now, in the years subsequent to World War I1 any time
we were abroad, I made personal contact with Mr. iulles, and
I think for national security we should go off th: record on

this, because this is something that pertains tody.,

(Discussion off the record.)
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The Chairman. Back on the record.

Mr. Rankin,.

provisions in the appropriation act with regard t.

concerning their protection of the person of the !

Mr. Rowley. Yes,
Mr. Rankin. You know of that, do you?
Mr. Rowley. Yes, I do,

Historically, that was first passed in 1910.
stated that because of the limited number of Secr
at that time, that appropriation -- a certain giv
was to be used by the U, S. Marshals to assist th

Mr,

Rankin. Was the Secret Service opposed

vision in the Appropriation Act for the FBI?
Mr. Rowley. No, it has never opposed that p

the years. 1 started to say, Mr. Rankin -- subse

after the founding of the FBI, this was transferr
from the Marshals to the FBI, and it has been in
priations as long as 1 can remember, We have nev

to that appropriationm.

Mr. Rankin, Now, there is some language in

I understand, which deals with the permanent orga

the government that you are objecting to, is that

Now, Chief Rowley, are you fami’

far with the

the FBI

resident?

It
t Service
n figure -~
- Secret Service.

o that pro-

ovision over
uently,

d, apparently
heir appro-

r Objected

[.R. 4158,
1ization of

right?
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Mr. Rowley, Yes, that has to do with the coc

wherein it states that the Attorney General will
I think, in substance,officials for the protectior
President of the United StateE. And this is8 a fes
codification of the law we object to, because the
of the Treasury authorizes and directs the protect
President,

Rep. Ford. 1Is that a bill, Mr. Rankin, that
the House Committee on the Judiciary and the Senat
Committee?

Mr. Rowley. They are preparing it, and they
our opinions, It must be now. This is a month o,
Mr. Ford.

Mr. Rankin. I think I can give the Commissic
exact language., It is Chapter 33 of the House rul

have just described, and it is under Section 534,

"The Attorney General may appoint officials" -- ar
quotes below that, in (2) "to protect the person «
President' and -- and then it deals with other mat

Now, will you tell why you have an objection

Just briefly summarize it.

Mr. Rowley. Because of the long history of 1

We have been directed -- it has been

protection,

{ification,

appoint =-

of the
ture in the

Secretary

fon of the

is before

e Judiciary

asked for

80 ago,

n the

e that 1

and the words are:
d then in

f the

ters.

to that?

residential

under the
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jurisdiction of the Treasury Department, authoriz/:d by the

Secretary of the Treasury. But this would confus: and be

a conflict in jurisdiction, Conflits would naturilly arise

in the future as to who had jurisdictionm,

I1f anything happened like Dallas, we would g:t into an

Alphonse
Mr,.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Mr.

and Gaston pantomime,

Rankin,
Rowley.

Rankin,
Rowley.

Rankin.

You would get into a jurisdicti»nal dispute?

That 1is right.
And that i8 why you object?

That 18 right,.

But as far as any provision tha: has been

made historically for the FBI to have funds so th:2y can

supplement and assist you, you have no objection to that?

Mr. Rowley.

Rep. Ford.

No objection at all.

Do you know how much in the way of funds have

been utilized through that provision?

Mr,

Rowley.

No, I would not know of my own «nowledge,

Congressman, because that would be under the jurisdiction

of the FBI and the Budget Bureau,

Rep. Ford. In other words, they don't take noney that

they get through their appropriation bill, and transfer it to

the Secret Service?

Mr. Rowley.

No.
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Rep. Ford. This is simply a provision whiclt authorizes
them to use whatever funds they get for this purpose?

Mr. Rowley. That 18 correct.

Mr. Rankin, Chief Row1é§, I understand that regarding
House 4158, the Treasury and the Justice Departme¢nt have
agreed that the language may be changed so that it will read
"Asgist'", 1s that right?

Mr. Rowley. That is correct.

Mr. Rankin., And that is satisfactory?

Mr. Rowley. That 1s right. That is what we worked out,

Mr. Rankin, Now, in connection with your protection
of the President, have you drawn upon various pecple in the
Government and consultants to assist you in regard to
scientific problems?

Mr. Rowley. Yes. Some eight or nine years rgo, we
evolved a relationship with the Defense Departmert -- I think
more specifically in the last four years -- a relationship
with the President's Scientific Advisor.

This 18 off the record.

(Discussion off the record.)

Mr. Rankin. Why, Chief?
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Mr, Rowley. This has to do with national security, .

(Discussion off the record.)
The Chairman., Back on the record.

Mr. Rankin, Chief Rowley, do you find in woik of the

Secret Service that you have need for scientific ¢dvice and
consultation concerning problems that develop reg:rding the

protection of the President, so that if you had s(me arrange-
ment whereby you could have the assistance of eitler the

President's Scientific Advisor or consultation with independent

consultants, it would assist and in fact be neces: ary to your
work?

Mr. Rowley. I think it would be a great hel; and it
is necessary today, because under the crash progrim that we
are endeavoring to undertake, I think it is impori! ant that

we know in Presidential protection what the curreit devices

are that are available and are efficient in conne« tion with

countermeasures against eavesdropping and other tl.ings that
we have been researching over the years. But thi: 1is neces-

sary on a day-to-day basis and it would be on an : nformal
basis with other agencies. 1 think it is necessa:'y to have

somebody of that type who is conversant with the :ubject,

a8 trained expert who knows precisely where to go.
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We might spend a lot of time going around the paths,

but by having an expert, he knows precisely the or ;anization,

the contracting company, what they have, whether 1: 1s guitable,

whether it is efficient for our purposes.

Rep. Ford, Mr. Rankin, is the letter of April 22, 1964,
from Mr. Rowley to you with the enclosures a Commission Exhibit?
Mr. Rankin. Yes, that has been offered. Tha: is 1027.

Rep. Ford. 1In this enclosure, Chief Rowley, >n page 4,
under subheading (c), the following is stated: "Taie Secret

Service has no funds for research and very limite¢ funds for

the acquisition of protective devices. In the Fiscal Year 1964

budget, the Service requested $23,057 for two positions for

technical specialists. The Congress did notmake!any appro-
priation covering this request, and it was repeate¢d in the
1965 budget request, and has been included in the appro-
priation passed by the House several weeks ago.”

Could you define more particularly what you lad in
mind for these so-called technical specialists?

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir. This was someone tha knew
something about electronics or electronic enginee 'ing for
the sweeping of different places. We felt that t) date we

vere utilizing the services of agents who primari.y came with

us on the basis of criminal investigation, and thit, therefore,

it was my feeling that we should have this type o/: expert.
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As 1 said earlier, I realize the shortcoming: and the
requirements which we are operating under -- and ] was
endeavoring to get the funds from Congress, the p¢rsonnel
that I thought were necessary, as well as the equipment
I thought we should have, primarily to have this (peration

under control for us,

Now, 1 might say, that the CIA have been most helpful,

The equipment we used in the early days was from that

organization and the State Department,
But now they have gotten so busy, as you well] know,
that they haven't much time to assist us,
So that we feel we want to have our own equijment, our
own experts, and people that know our work, and d¢vote their
time to it,
Rep. Ford. When you talk about technical sp¢cialists

here, you are referring to electronics specialiste?

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir.
Rep. Ford. You are not referring to a gener¢l research

and development program, however?

Mr. Rowley. No, sir. This confusion is why it was
refused a year ago.

Rep. Ford, Let me ask this, then, Chief Row]ey.

Would these technical experts, or technical specialists,

have been on duty in Dallas on this particular trip if you had
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had the funds and had employed them?

Mr. Rowley., Yes. But they would have been mployed in
something entirely different,

Rep. Ford. They'wouldn’} have had any relat .onship
to the motorcade?

Mr, Rowley. No, sir.

I1f 1 may go off the record.

Mr. Rankin. Will you tell us why you are go ng off the
record?

Mr. Rowley. Because it involves national se urity.

(Discussion off the record.)

The Chairman. Back on the record.

Rep. Ford. As I understand it, then, the de .etion of
these funds for these technical specialists in fi:ical year
1964 did not in any way handicap your operation 1 Dallas

at the time of the assassination?

Mr. Rowley. No. We have never said that. 'le are just

saying that if we had the equipment -- in other w)rds, what I

am trying to do, Mr., Congressman, is to move forwird, And the

only way I know, after a period of years, is to ajik for a
sum of money, but then my experience is that some :imes the

Congress becomes alarmed. But this is a need tha: we have,

And this is what 1 am trying to explain., This is an example

of what we are trying to do, in equipment and man)ower.




4 o
(NP o (._-"

- 87 -

Rep. Ford, Mr, Chairman, or Mr, Rankin, I h:

shortly over to a session of the House, And sincy

in the budget area, I think it might be well for

to develop some facts concerning your budget -- w!

have in the past and what you are suggesting they

be in the future.

Mr. Rowley. Well, 1 have here a sumary of

priation allocations as it applies to manpower an(

and the number of persons on the roll.
Rep. Ford. Do you receive your appropriatio
lump sum or how do you recelve Secret Service app:
Mr. Rowley. I guess it is on a warrant. Wh

warrant is signed -~

Rep. Ford. Your budget is included as a par;

Department budget?

Mr, Rowley. Yes, sir,

Rep. Ford. Now, do you have it in a separat
Treasury Department budget?

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir.

Rep. Ford. 1Is it specifically earmarked for
Service?

Mr. Rowley. 1t is, yes, sir.

Rep. Ford., It is a lump sum for the Secret S

Mr., Rowley. Yes, sir.

ve to go
we are

he record

at they

might

he appro-

equipment,

8 In a

opriations?

n the

of the Treasury

» part of the

the Secret
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Mr. Dulles. That 1s a public appropriation,
public?

Mr. Rowley. That is8 correct, yes, sir,

Mr. Rankin, CongressmaA'Ford, if I may inte

a minute, I can ask Chief Rowley if the Exhibit N

the one he just referred to in answer to your que
the budget.

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir,

(The document referred to was marked Commiss

No. 1028 for identification.)

Mr. Rankin., I then offer in evidence Exhibi

The Chairman, It may be admitted.

(The document heretofore marked for identif

Commission Exhibit No. 1028 was received in evide

Mr. Rankin, Exhibit 1028, Chief Rowley, doe
in this -- 8o it will be understandable to the Co
the figures for your proposed budget of 1966, doe

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir.

Mr. Rankin. And those are shown in that man
exhibit?

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir.

Rep. Ford, 1Is the figure we see here --

Mr. Rowley. This is what we call a tentativ

Mr. Rankin, That has been presented to the

it is8 made

'rupt just
», 1028 1is

ition about

.on Exhibit

- 1028,

lcation as
1ce. )

3 include

mission,

sn't 1t?

1er on the

> budget.

3udget Bureau?
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Mr. Rowley. It has not been presented to th
Office of the Treasury which i1is the first step., 7
to the Budget Bureau and then subsequently to the
and Senate, ‘

Mr. Rankin., You said it has not been.

Mr. Rowley. No, this is a tentative proposa.
made.

Mr. Rankin., At this stage, 80 we get the rec
that is a consideration of what you think you shor
it hasn't gone through the steps you have just de:
that right?

Mr, Rowley. That is right, But it does not
necessarily, until we complete our thorough exami:

what our requirements will be under the new revis:

organization, Particularly, as it relates to man;
want to be sure that we have the proper justifica
we hope by October or November to have a good est
time.

Rep. Ford. Well, the figure that is shown h
Year 1965 1is $7,550,000,

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir,

Rep., Ford. 1Is that the budget submission to

Mr. Rowley. To the Congress, yes, sir,

Rep. Ford. And do you recall what the House

Budget
hen it goes'

House

that we have

ord clear ~--
1d have, but

cribed, is

include --

ation --

ons of our
ower - we
ion. And so

mate at that

re for Fiscal

the Congress?

approved in its
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version of the bill?
Mr. Rowley. §7,500,000, They cut $50,000,
Rep. Ford., Do you reca;} what the reduction was

predicated to?

Mr. Rowley. No, I don't, I think it was jJusft cut to

a round figure,

Rep. Ford. What is the footnote here which :s entitled

"Pending action by the Senate." 1Is that a $669,0(0 increase?
Mr. Rowley. That is right,
Rep. Ford. 1s that a supplemental?
Mr. Rowley. No, we are just showing the inci'ease -~
this has nothing to do with the $696,000. We shor -- this
was passed by the House, but it is now pending in.the Senate
for approval, 1In other words, you have your mark-up or
something, and then it hasn't been submitted to tie House for a --

to the Senate for approval,

Rep. Ford. But there is an asterisk there.

Mr. Rowley. Yes. This is the '65 budget. T[his figure

that was reduced by $50,000 by the House.

Now, it goes before -- for a mark-up -- it will be placed

before the Senate for approval.

Mr. Rankin. Chief Rowley, when you say ''this" it doesn't

show on the record what you are talking about, S0 if you can

tell what item on that exhibit, 1028.
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Rep. Ford. On the same line with the langua e, "pending
action by Senate,'" on the right-hand side is $669 000, which

{8 labeled as an increase. That increase relates to what?

Mr, Rowley. It relates to the difference --|the increase

between 65 and our proposed budget of 1966,

The asterisk here relates to the 586 positions,.

Mr. Rankin. 1Is there any connection between those
two? Chief Rowley, is there any connection betwe!n the

asterisk, and the wording "Pending before the Senite,'" and the

item on the right-hand column of the increase?

Mr. Rowley. Yes, it represents the increase that we
are asking for in the '66 budget.

Sen. Cooper. You are not asking the Senate, though, to
increase the House figure of $7,500,000 by $669,0)0,.

Mr. Rowley. No, there is no connection between this
increase. This should have been down here, where you explain
what the asterisk is, where we have 586. Maybe 1i: was put in
the wrong position there. In other words, it is like a
footnote., This is pending action -- meaning that the House
has passed the '65 budget, but the Senate has yet to pass it,

Mr. Rankin. But to clarify, there is no coniection between

the increased figure and the fact that it is pending before

the Senate?

Mr. Rowley. That is right., It happens to b: on the same
line, '
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Mr. Rankin., But there is no connection?
Mr. Rowley. No, sir,
Sen, Cooper., What you mean is the House has| passed

an appropriation of $7,500,000 and the Senate has not yet

acted upon {it.
Mr. Rowley. That 18 correct,

Sen., Cooper. The $669,000 is an Increase thjit you

hope will be voted in the next fiscal year.
Mr. Rowley. That 1is correct,.
Mr. Dulles. Do you present the budget yours:lf, or
does the Secretary of the Treasury, or someone else in the
Treasury Department -- present and defend 1it?
Mr. Rowley. The Secretary presents the over-all Treasury

budget, but then in detail, we appear before the appropriations

subcommittee ourselves to justify our request.

Mr. Dulles. The Secret Service justifies itself on
request in the over-all budget of the Department of the
Treasury.

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir.

Rep. Ford. Chief Rowley, on page 5 of Exhitit 1027, the

statement is made, "In the fiscal year 1965, the Secret Service

has requested funds for an additional 25 positiors. The House

of Representatives has included the requested furds in the

Treasury Post Office appropriation bill which patsed several



Tt l' " .
.-" . “'i
( (

- 93 -

weeks ago, These funds will not be sufficient to take the

additional measures which we believe are required. However,
since the 1965 budget figures had to be submitted in November
1963, it was not possible to make specific and prcperly
Justified requests at that time. We should be in a position
to do so in the fiscal year 1966 budget submissior."

You are not saying that you won't have whatever additional
personnel you need now, or from now until the beginning of
fiscal year 1966, for the protection of the Presicent?

Mr. Rowley. No, we are not saying that. We are saying
that in view of the circumstances of what happenec in November,
that this budget of 25 positions had already been submitted,

and there was nothing you could do to take it back.

The '66 budget was also prepared and submitted. But, as
1 explain later, in all considération, we cannot &t this time
helter skelter say we need so many men, taking advantage of
the tragedy. We want to experiment and develop whtat we need
in protective research in the way of manpower and equipment, and
what we need in the field, because necessarily we will have to
have special agents added to the field to conduct any inves-

tigations on risks that may be forwarded to them,

Rep. Ford. But if in the process of your ane¢lysis of

your needs, you develop that you need more personrel, you need

new devices, you need equipment of any sort whatscever -- you
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won't delay the submission of that request just b:cause of the

®»

fiscal year budget coming up for fiscal 19667
Mr. Rowley., No, sir,
Rep. Ford., Because we do have, as you well rtnow,

supplemental and deficiency appropriation bills,

Mr. Rowley. That is right,

Rep. Ford., So if you need something, you cah request it of
the Bureau of the Budget, and if it can be justified, it can
be submitted to the Congress in one of the other ‘orms besides
the regular appropriation bills. ;

Mr. Rowley. That is right., Because now as [ understand
it the same committee handles the supplemental.

Rep. Ford. That 18 correct.

Mr. Rowley. We are aware of that, That is vhat we would
do when we arrive at what our requirements would »e.

Rep. Ford. We can have your assurance that [f you come up
with requirements, you won't wait for fiscal 1966 to make
your submission,

Mr. Rowley. That is right.

Mr. Rankin, Chief Rowley, you are in the pri>cess of trying

to arrive at your estimates of what you need in aiditional

personnel and equipment and other assistance to mpke the pro-

tective services and the Secret Service in its wo-k of pro-

tecting the President as efficient as possible, aire you?
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Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir,

Mr. Rankin. And you are seeking the help anc advice of

people that you have named, such as the Rand Corpcration, and

others?
Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir,
Mr. Rankin. And do you have any estimate now that you can

give the Commission as to when you might have you: estimates

in that regard? ;

Mr. Rowley., Well, I think, No., 1, with regaid to the
protective research, I think we need some expert there to
assist us in developing our requirements, particularly in
the criteria, on a full-time basis., We have assigned what

we thought were sufficient men at this time to-cofe‘with the

volume of work and reports that we have been receiving, which

are now being received from the various organizations of

approximately a hundred reports a day. So that we¢ have cut
down to a considerable point. .

Now, following the evaluation and the proces:ting of these
reports, we will determine just what we actually rieed in the

way of manpower.

Mr. Rankin., You also have the problem of being able to

get that material out once you have it, don't you?

Mr. Rowley. That is right, And this is the point that

we have to develop with IBM, or as I said initially, with



- 96 -
the CIA.

Now, they have facilities that would be avaiable to us
if it works. ;

Mr. Rankin. And you are also inquiring into the question

of the sufficiency of the number of agents you haée for

this area as well as other Secret Service tasks?
Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir.
Mr. Rankin., And you are going to present th.t to the

Congress as soon as you have something definite that you

can support?

Mr., Rowley. That is right -- in response to Congressman

Ford's inquiry.

Mr. Rankin, Now, I think the Commission wou.d be
interested in the requirements or standards that rou have
f or agents. :

Do you require a college education now?

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir.

Mr. Rankin., And are there any other conditipns or

standards that you would like to describe?

Mr. Dulles. May I inquire for one point?
Is that a college education for the White Hdise Detail?

Mr. Rowley. No -- that is for all the agenﬁb that we

recruit for our work, for both criminal and prote:>tive, Mr,

Dulles.
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We require a minimum academic achievement of

of college or university, and preferably those wh

police administrative schools, where they have in

curriculum subjects on science criminology and lavw

four years

attend *

their

. We

find that these people are better adapted, they héve an

inclination, and they are interested. {

But we do take people with BA's and BS's bect

too, have been most satisfactory. But we find whe
to recruit the men, we go to these colleges with {
courses. As I mentioned earlier we first started

from Michigan State, because that was one of the

universities with a police administration curricu

we found each and everyone of them have been most

and have excellent records.

As a matter of fact, a good portion of them j
in charge of our 65 offices throughout the countr

Mr. Rankin. What do you do as a matter of p

using your agents as -- do you keep them in Presif
protection, or do you shift them from that to oth

in the Secret Service?

Mr. Rowley. Well, when they are first sworn

we assign them to an office, so during the period

six months, you would call it in-service training

are not in the position that the FBI is where the

say, a given number of agents -- let's set a figu
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use they,
n we need
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and then they can start them immediately with their school
of 12 weeks, We are not in a position to hire thi{t many at *
& time, We are in a position to hire ten., So thidt after
g8ix months, ten now, after the character investige¢tions are
completed, and then we may get ten more later. |

Then we send them to what we call the Treasury Basic

School,after which we try to send them as soon asgis practical

to our Secret Service School.
Now, sometimes a new man might be a year in the Secret
Service and during that period he is on probation, after
which we determine through the agent in charge whether his
service is satisfactory and whether he will develc¢p into an

agent,

Mr., Dulles. 1Is the FBI school open to any of your
respective recruits? ;

Mr. Rowley. Well --

Mr, Dulles., FBI Academy :

Mr. Rowley. The Police Academy would be if we had
occasion to send them there, if there was somethirg they
could benefit from, We do send the White House pclice to the
FBI Police Academy, because that is more in connection with

their police function,

Mr, Rankin, How does your agent get into the Presidential

protection?
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Mr. Rowley. Well, some of the agents have indicated in

®

their personnel history questionnaires submitted each year

whether they wish to select an office of duty preflerence, and

there are three offices listed., 1If an agent wants for one reason

or another after a period of three years on the White House

Detail to make a request for a transfer, we consicer which
of the three offices he selected has a vacancy, arid we assign
him to that office., We then bring in one of the cther special

agents from the field service to replace him, We /then train

him in the protective work.

Necessarily, you have to have a nucleus. So there are
also a number of men in supervisory positions who have been
on the White House Detail for 20 or more years.

Mr. Rankin., But your theory is that they shculd be
able to be trained so that they could be shifted to any part
of the Service%

Mr. Rowley. That is right. And it has this jadvantage:
Once they are trained in Presidential protection, if for some
reason the White House Detail gets instructions tlat the
President is going to fly to one of the cities, or some hamlet
across the country, and we do not have time to get an agent

aboard a plane and send him there, or maybe the Air Force has

no plane available to transport him there, we picl up the

phone and call an agent at the nearest place -- ard here 1is
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an agent that has been trained, he knows the mechinics of

the operation, and the procedure, and he goes to ‘wvork, and °

effectively lays out the arrangements.
Mr. Ford. Mr. Chairman,  this Commission Exh.bit 1028,

which shows the budget and the positions, I think is

helpful, But in the submission of the budget by i:he Secret

Service to the Congress they have a greater breakliown of

their personnel set-up.

I think it might be wise to include what the? submitted

to the Congress, or something comparable to it, bizcause 1
think it is far more complete than this.

Mr. Rowley. That 1s correct. _

Mr. Ford. And I think it might be helpful f>r the record.

Mr. Rowley. We do not disclose the number of men on

Presidential protection.

Mr. Ford. I understand that. But you are familiar with
the presentation you submit for your over-all budizet, including

personnel?

Mr. Rowley. Right.

Mr. Ford. Can that not be submitted for our record, just

as it is submitted to the House and Senate Committee on

Appropriations.

Mr. Rowley. It is a matter of public record; But whether

or not the tentative one, the '66 can be, before the Budget
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Bureau sees it, is something else again, ;

Mr., Ford. 1 would not expect that it would, .

Mr. Rowley. No. But the others can be.

Mr. Rankin., Mr, Chairman, I would like to aik leave to

secure a copy of that and Insert it in the recordﬁ

The Chairman., It may be admitted when you obhtain {it,

Mr, Ford. May 1 ask one other question, and then I have to
leave?

In listening to the testimony, Chief Rowley, sometime
ago, I was a little concerned -- more than a little, I should
say -- with the process by which the man in charg: of a
Presidential trip undertakes his relationship wita the local
law enforcement agencies.

As I recall the testimony, the man in charge has contact
with the local police and the sheriff's department and any other
local law enforcement agency. But the impression that 1 gained
was that there was no clear delineation of responsibility.

They sat around, they talked about what this local law en-
forcement agency would do and what another one wculd do.

But it seems to me that a more precise check list, a
clear understanding, would be wholesome and better,

What is your reaction on that?

Mr, Rowley. Well, number one, in our revised Manual

on Presidential Protection, that is part of the thing.
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Now, I would hesitate to prepare a check 113$ for every-

body, because you may be embarrassed to find it i1 the press

some day, because of the activity of reporters arihund the

police.

1 do not want to downgrade any police departiient, but
this is what happens through no fault of theirs. There are
variations anyway in different cities. :

Now, I think what you are referring to, Mr. longressman,
is that they complained they did not have a suffi:ient notice
of the route and so forth, so they could make the proper
preparations, That is true., Neither did we have sufficient
notice. Because they were going back and forth t:-ying to
establish -- until they were told they had 45 minutes allotted
to them for this route, and first our man had to go, which 1is
a natural operation, to look over the route to se> whether or

not it could be negotiated within that particular period

of time.

Once establishing that it could, and the thiag looked
gafe, then they notified the police and went over it with the
police. And then with the police they indicated*ﬁhat they
would like done here at intersections and so fortih, and other
features, l

Now, it 18 true in most cases we ourselves 1llke to get
sufficient advance information, we like to send oﬁrtmen out

in advance so they do not have to cope with these fast
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operations, because when a police department has sufficient

notice of the route and so forth, then they have Edequate
time to get out instructions to their own police department -~
whether by precinct or by gréup commanders, and eb forth,

And this is what I think in this instance that they are
complaining about, :

Mr, Ford., As I understand it, however, at the present
time, and for the future, there will be a more priecise
procedure for the relationships of the Secret Ser&ice on the
one hand and local law enforcement agencies on the other.

Mr., Rowley. Yes, sir.

Mr, Ford, That is set forth in your manual hs presently
revised?

Mr. Rowley. 1In our present revisedmanual.;

Mr, Ford, So that when your agent in chargeégoes to
city X, he now has the procedures set forth for many to
follow on, so there are no uncertainties, if thatéis possible?

Mr. Rowley. That is right. .

And you have to necessarily do that, because you have

agents, as I said -- as I cited an example where an agent

had been trained in the White House, but you have to

utilize his services, because you cannot get a regular White

House man out there. He has this information, ani he follows

it accordingly. 1It is a check for him as well aséfor the police.
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Mr. Ford. Other countries have protection jroblems of

their chief executive. .

I am sure in recent months the French have h@d considerable

problems in this regard.

Do you ever have an exchange of methods with other govern-

ments for your benefit or their benefit?

Mr, Rowley., We have been approached, Mr. Copgressman,

for instructions on security and so forth, but we| for reasons --
For national security reasons, I would like togoéoff the

record.

(Off the record.)

(At this point, Representative Ford left the|hearing
room, ) . !
The Chairman. Back on the record. i
Mr, Dulles., You have referred to the dry ruis*which
you made in Dallas, and you usually make, I under}tand, to

establish a route.

First I think you said you did this yourself|, and then

with the local police. s

Mr, Rowley. Yes, sir,

+
|
E

Mr. Dulles. Do you have any reason to belieye that
those dry runs were observed by the President or tnown

to the President, or received any publicity? |

Mr. Rowley. No, they did not receive any puplicity.
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The Chairman., Chief, you were referring a li|:tle while

ago to the revised rules,

When did the last revision take place? Has 1# been since the

assassination?

Mr. Rowley. No.

The over-all manual, revision of the Manual o the
Secret Service, was undertaken before 1 took offic2, and
because it was delayed, I took it upon myself to ajssign a
man to s8it down seven days a week, to bring this manual up

to date. The over-all manual has been completed, | Now we
have almost completed the revised advance manual of our pro-
tective phase of it.
The Chairman. And -- but there has been ~-- a3 yet
there has been no revision since the assassination?
Mr. Rowley. No, sir. It is in the process.
The Chairman, It is in the process of being |done?
Very well,
Senator Cooper. 1 would like to ask a questijon,.
I think you stated that you took part in the jprocedures
and methods for the protection of President Kennedy when
he was ~-- prior to his visit to Dallas,

Mr. Rowley. No, sir,

Senator Cooper, I thought you said that you jparticipated

in a dry run,

Mr, Rowley. Oh, no. I was describing what t:jhe
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advance agents do,

Senator Cooper. Anyway -- you know what the
Secret Service did in preparing for the visit of |
Kennedy to Dallas? ‘

Mr, Rowley. Yes, sir,

Senator Cooper. And you know what procedures

during the actual route of the motorcade on that c

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir,.

Senator Cooper. Now, reviewing those, 1is the
failure that you know about on the part of the Sec
in those procedures or in the methods which they
day of the assassination?

Mr. Rowley. No, sir.

Mr. Rankin., Chief Rowley, would you tell us
scale for your agents for the first two years?

Mr. Rowley. Yes.

We recruit an agent at grade GS-7, at $5795.

Mr. Rankin. How does that compare with the
salary for the FBI?

Mr, Rowley. 1 think it is a difference of ti
As I understand, the lowest FBI grade is GS-10.

Mr. Rankin. $10,0007?

Mr. Rowley. Grade 10,

Mr. Rankin. What salary would that be?

&
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Mr. Rowley. It might be -- for example, GS-1.

Now, it could be somewhere between $7500 and

Mr. Rankin, Are you able to get at that sala

quality of men that you should for this kind of wo:

Mr.,

Rowley. Yes. We have found to date that

able -- we have been selective. And of course the

we have only appropriations for a limited number of

For example, today we have well over 40 men w:
accepted, with completed investigations, some a ye:
Sometimes when we put in requests for a given numbe
we want to put those men on at the beginning of the
year, so we undertake to recruit them and complete
vestigation, so that everything -- the character ar
physical is up to date -- and we can put them on, 1

funds precisely at the beginning of the fiscal yea:

Mr. Rankin, You recognize that your starting
not favorable in comparison with some police force:
not?

Mr. Rowley. 1 recognize that. But at the san

are guided by the Treasury law enforcement examinat
the Treasury investigative standards. But we are t

of the West Coast police organizations, for example

are well paid and great organizations.
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Mr,

Rankin, Now, what kind of a workload do

have on an average?
Mr. Rowley. Well, at the present time we hav

of 110.1 cases per man,

Mr. Rankin., How does that compare with other
agencies?
Mr. Rowley. Well, I think -- a satisfactory

per man per month is from 14 to 15 cases.
Now, I am quite certain that in other agencie

little more than that. But whether or not it is a

at the present time, 1 have no way of knowing at t
Mr. Rankin. Do you think that is a handicap
operation?
Mr. Rowley. Well, it is a handicap. But I t

testimony to the dedication and the industry of ou
we are not complaining., We are conducting ourselv
ing our services for the government to the point t
though we are understaffed, nevertheless we are no
and we are carrying on the work within the respons

entrusted to us,

Mr. Rankin,.

Did you write the Commission a 1

the history of the early development and growth of

Service operation over the years?
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Mr, Rowley. Yes, sir,

Mr, Rankin, Is Exhibit 1029 that informatio
gave us?

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir,

This also included the White House police.,.

Mr. Rankin, Will you examine Exhibit 1029, .
us as to whether or not any of that should not be
the public record in light of the national securi

Mr. Rowley. No, 1 have no objections, becau:
years past -- this is part of the public record.
would not see any objection at this time.

(At this point, Senator Cooper left the hear:

Mr. Rankin., Mr, Chairman, I offer in eviden«
No. 1029,

The Chairman., It may be admitted.

(The document was marked for identification
Exhibit No. 1029, and received in evidence,)

Mr. Rankin., Chief Rowley, did you write us :
regard to proposed legislation, dated June 11?

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir.

Mr., Rankin, And is Exhibit 1030 that letter

us with an attachment telling about possible legi:

changes that you thought might be desirable.

Mr., Rowley. Yes, sir.

»
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(The document was marked for identification &
Exhibit No. 1030.)
Mr.

Rankin, I offer in evidence Exhibit 103C

The Chairman., 1t may be admitted.

(Coommission Exhibit No., 1030 was received in

Mr, Rankin., Can you briefly state the conter
attachment to that exhibit, Chief Rowley?

You recall that it is a commentary on the sug
legislation about the assassination of the Preside

Mr, It 18 a recommendation on

Rowley. Yes.
being proposed, that the assassination of a Presic
Vice President or possible successors to the Presi
made a federal crime,

(At this point, Senator Cooper re-entered the

room, )

Mr. Rowley. Currently there is such a law wt
people of lesser rank in the government are murde:
investigated by federal agencies.

Rankin.

Mr, Would you tell the Commission b
your idea is as to whether or not it would be hely

such a statute?

Mr. Rowley. 1 think today it would be helpf:

would be a continuation of present law and it woul

8 Commission
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federal jurisdiction ~- because this 18 a federal
And I think it properly should be under federal st
would then be an opportunity particularly today in
of the President or Vice President, for the invest
pursued immediately and the assassin or groups of d
to be interrogated as promptly as possible to deve
ascertain whether or not there is a conspiracy, an.
as we have to do under the present law because of
gstatute,

Mr. Rankin. Do you have any suggestions in y
about who would have jurisdiction to investigate a:

regard to any violation of that law?

Mr. Rowley. Currently the federal enforcemen::

namely, the FBI -- have the responsibility of cond
investigations, on most of the federal laws in the
and therefore it might properly be their responsib

gituation like this.

However, we do have a reservation with respec|

or threat on the President, because we would like
an agreement whereby we would jointly conduct an {
because the threat phase of it has been under our

under 3056, for many years. It ties in with our r

for protection of the President.

Mr. Rankin. In connection with the investiga

mployee,
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the assassination of President Kennedy, have you |
participated In working with regard to that, in s:
of that investigation?

Mr, Rowley. In the earfy stages when we ass
men to inquire into the background of Oswaldland ;
then eventually, when the President authorized th

conduct the investigation, we pulled out and only

and finished up those reports that we initiated.

Mr. Rankin, And since that time, after the
given the authority to proceed with the investiga
you have cooperated with the Commission through t!

your staff, in helping with various information £

to time. 1Is that right?
Mr. Rowley. That 18 correct,
Mr. Rankin. Now, do you have any informatio

credible nature that would suggest to you that Os

could have been an agent or informant of any fede

Mr. Rowley. 1 have no credible information
no, sir.
Mr. Rankin. Was he an agent or informant or

indirectly connected with the Secret Service in a

Mr. Rowley. Not in any way. We did not kno

the event.

Mr. Rankin, From the way that the Secret Se

ployment is arranged, and the records are kept, a
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are made, 1f he had ever been placed in any such «
with the Secret Service, would it have come to yo

Mr. Rowley., It would; yes, sir,

Mr, Rankin., And you are certain that he nev:
hired directly or indirectly or acted in that cap:

Mr, Rowley. He was never hired directly or ]
in any capacity.,

Mr. Rankin, Do you have any credible inform:
would cause you to believe that Lee Harvey Oswald
agent of any foreign country?

Mr. Rowley. I have no such credible informa

Mr. Rankin. Do you have any credible inform:
cause you to believe that he was involved in any «
in connection with the assassination, either dome.
foreign?

Mr. Rowley. 1 have no credible information
those,

Mr. Rankin., Are there any areas of the inve:

Commission that you would suggest that further wo:
be done, as far as you know the work of the Commi:

Mr. Rowley. 1 do not,.
Mr. Rankin, From your knowledge of the inve

you have any opinion as to whether Lee Harvey Osw.

apacity .
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involved in the killing of the President?

Mr, Rowley. From the reports I have read, 1

say that he was involved in the killing of the Pre¢
I do not have complete knowlédge of it.

Mr. Rankin. Do you have any opinion from you

of the investigation as to whether Mr, Ruby was a:
with anyone else directly or indirectly in the kil
Harvey Oswald?
Mr. Rowley.
to Ruby. Consequently, I could not say, other th:
gaw on television or read in the newspapers, whetl
any connection.
Mr. Rankin,

Is there anything in connection

work of the Commission or what you know about our

here that you would like to add to or suggest tha:

Commission do beyond what you know of it?
Mr. Rowley. No, sir,
Senator Cooper. May I ask a question?
Mr. Rankin asked you several questions. He
you had credible information, which I think was a

question. But may I ask if you have any informat

upon any facts that you know or any -- based upon

information given to you by persons who claim to

knowledge -- that there were persons engaged in a

to kill President Kennedy?
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Mr. Rowley. I have no such facts, sir,

Senator Cooper. 1 address the same question as to

whether you have any information that the killing of -

President Kennedy was -- had any connection with iny foreign
power?
Mr. Rowley. I have no such informationm.
The Chairman, Mr. Dulles, any questions?
Mr. Dulles. Yes, sir. 1 have one general qi|estion.
From the testimony, and from my own study, 1i{ would

seem to me that it was likely that there would be|a parallel,

somewhat parallel structures to develop the invesiigative

capabilities with regard to possible suspects in {'he area of

Presidential assassination.

Any my question is ai to whether,

in order to avoid that undue expense, you think tliere would

be any advantage in putting the responsibility of that within

the FBI, who would then be responsible for advisiijg you as

to potential suspects and possibly following up o

rather than putting that responsibility now to a

on the Secret Service -- whether there is not a d

sponsibility in this field which is unfortunate,

lead to greater expense, personnel doing somewhat

work?

Mr. Rowley. As it applies to this law now?

. that,

ertain extent

vision of re-

/ind may possibly

duplicative
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Mr. Dulles., As it applies to the situation
without the law which 18 recommended in your memo
and might apply also after that, because the inve
would be required in either Ease to turn up possi
suspects,

My question 1s, where should that responsibi
primarily centered in order to avoid undue duplic
expense, and yet accomplish our objective.

Mr., Rowley. Well, when you mention duplicat
do not think there has been much duplication in t
when the President directed the FBI to conduct th
to determine whether or not there was a conspirac

Mr. Dulles. I am not talking about now. I
about investigation prior to, say, the President'
city X in the United States.

Mr. Rowley. 1 see.

Mr. Dulles. Or abroad ~-- where you have the
the Secret Service and the CIA.

Mr. Rowley. Well, I think you want to keep
of Presidential protection by a small closely kni
because of the intimate relationship. But if you
expand it and give it to another group, to take t
range view, you do not know what may develop from

like that -- whether a police organization could
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a police state or a military state ~-- if you want 1

it to some organization like that.

The Chairman, 1 suppose also, Chief Rowley, |
people were not doing the spaéework on this thing,
keeping their minds steeped in this protection matt
were obliged to rely on the written records of som:
presented to you, that they would not be in the pr«
of mind, would they, to alert -- to be alert to it’

Mr, There would be a

Rowley. That is right.

to relax and say John Jones is taking care of it.

always the possibility that you might encounter in
like that,

The Chairman., And in law enforcement, you ha:

feel of the situation, do you not?

You have to do the spadework in order to be au
every possibility that might develop?
That 1is true.

Mr. Rowley. Because you see ir

Dulles, on the Presidential Detail, it is a unique

This 18 something that they think 24 hours a day.

hours a day. They are not otherwise involved.

they have the principle of screening the President

always ready to make a quick exit. They do not ha\

to investigate or identify any person, whoever the

might be. Their responsibility is only to protect

dent at all times.
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Mr, Dulles. But they have to know against w!

protect him,

Mr. Rowley. That is right., But they are re:
anything under the present close screening.

But, 1f I understand your question, Mr, Dullc
you also want to know whether or not in the screer
investigation of certain groups, like the Communi:
and so forth, since it is their responsibility anc
because they have the internal security of the Uni

this is something that we have to develop.

Mr, Dulles. 1Is8 ''they'" the FBI?

Mr. Rowley. The FBI.
That is something that we have to have a form
ment about because it enters the realm of internal

We do not want to conflict. That is uppermost in

We have been most correct about that, in any of tti
as you know,
Mr,

Dulles. How much larger staff do you thi

going to have to have to cover that situation in t
Mr. Rowley. Well, I would not know until we
volume of reports that we get that we have to refe

field for investigation. Since we are processing

vwe have to wait to make that determination,
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Mr. Dulles, Should you do field investigatic

contrasted with the FBI ~- the FBI have a large nu
people in a large number of cities throughout the
States, You do not have thag?

Mr. Rowley. No. But on the basis of this cr
we discussed earlier, the FBI would give us the in
and if in our evaluation we determined that it sho

referred to the field for investigation, particula

case of individuals, we would conduct our investig
determine whether this individual is a high risk t
President,

Now, when it comes to the group, this is some
the FBI to do, because it ties in with thelr respc
for internal security.

Now, if there is a close connection between t
then we would have to have a formal agreement, Bu
of our responsibility, and the fact that this is p

the work that we have to undertake, then we would

own investigation, because we know what we are loc

Mr. Dulles. If the name of Lee Harvey Oswalc
submitted to you by the FBI, what would you, in tt

course, have done?

Would you have referred that back to them for

tigation, or would you have carried on an indepenc

tigation?
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1 am talking now if that name had been referr

when you knew you were going to go to Dallas,

Mr. Rowley. If we knew we were going to go t

and we had this present criteria, then we would in
him,

Mr, Dulles. You would carry on the investiga

Mr. Rowley. Yes, sir,

Mr. Dulles. Thank you.

Mr. Rankin, Mr, Chief Justice, 1 am through

Rowley now -- except I would like to ask him to su

copy of the information about their appropriation

insert it after Exhibit 1028. But we do have Mr.

here.

As you recall, there was some difficulty abou

testimony about what the Secret Service was doing

meeting in regard to the Vice President. And whil

here, I would like to straighten that record out,

The Chairman. Very well.

Mr., Rankin. It will be very brief.

The Chairman., Chief, 1 want to take this opg

thank you and the members of your Secret Service f

cooperation you have given to this Commission, Ti
very diligent, very helpful, as you personally ha

we appreciate 1it.
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Mr, Rowley., Thank you, sir,

The Chairman, Mr, Carswell, you have been sv
you not?

Mr., Carswell. Yes, sirf

The Chairman, Very well. You may proceed.

Mr., Rankin, Mr, Chief Justice, if the Commis
bear with me just a minute, I would like to tell ¢

own conversation with the Vice President about thi
prior to his answering in regard to correction of
Escuse me -- the Speaker.

The Chairman., Very well. You may proceed.

Mr. Rankin, After the matter came up before

before, I was asked by one of the Commissioners t¢

Speaker, Mr. McCormack, and 1 did that at his offj
informed me that the Secret Service and also the 1
undertaken to try to give him protection because ¢
in the line of succession, and that because of th«
that he felt and his wife felt with their relation
years in being alone and together in their family
not like to have that interference, and he asked 1
participate any more in furnishing that protectiorn

He said it was his own responsibility in taking ti

he wanted that to be clear, and that he thought ti

orn, have

sion will

bout my

8 matter

the record.
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see the
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any protection he needed, he had plenty of protect
kind of protection that the Congress had around hi
performance of his duty,

It came to 6ur -= Mr, Caéswell'a attention, r
diately after he had testified, that his statement
regard were inaccurate because of the change that !
that had not come to his attention., He called me
he would like to correct the record.

Mr. Carswell, will you tell us now what the £
as you have learned?

TESTIMONY OF ROBERT CARSWELL

Mr. Carswell. When 1 testified before I was
believe, what protection the Secret Service was pr
Speaker, 1 said that we were providing protection
to that previously provided to the Vice President.
on the basis of checking with Chief Rowley, immedi

he assassination of President Kennedy, and he told

that time such protection was being provided to th
1 understood that that was the case the next
because at that time we were not certain what was

I had not heard anything about it after that. And

that the situation continued as it was immediately

assassination. But that was not the case,.

As Mr, Rankin has stated, the Speaker request
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Service to discontinue assigning agents to him for

and we concurred -- we did what he requested. Tha:

present situation.

Mr. Rankin, That 18 all I have.

The Chairman,

Very well,
Thank you, Mr. Carswell,
Well, gentlemen, I think that will be all tod:

Commission will adjourn now,

(Whereupon, at 12:35 pm, the Commission adjou:

protectiony

is the
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